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KIDSGROVE, or Kidgrew, is a considerable village on the high road, 2 miles N. of Tunstall, in the townships or liberties of Ranscliff, Brerehurst, and Oldcott, which see. Many of the inhabitants are employed in the collieries belonging to Thomas Kinnersly, Esq., of Clough Hall, and J. Sutton and Co., of Trubshaw.  Here is a Private Chapel, or Church, built in 1837, by T. Kinnersly, Esq., of brick, in the Gothic style.  The Rev. Frederick Wade, M.A., of Golden hill, is the curate.  Here is also a large Weslyan chapel, built in 1849, and both have large Sunday schools. A little west of the village is the northern entrance to HARECASTLE TUNNELS, which conduct the Trent and Mersey canal a distance of one mile and three quarters under a lofty hill, extending nearly to the borders of Cheshire.  The old canal tunnel is 12 feet high and 9 broad, and at the depth of from 70 to 80 yards below the summit of the hill.  The new canal tunnel runs parallel with the old one, but is of larger dimensions, and has a towing path, with a strong guard rail along the water side.  It is said to have cost 103,680 guineas, or a guinea per inch, and was formed by the spirited canal company for the purpose of avoiding the great delay which was occasioned by boats having frequently to wait at one end of the old tunnel, whilst others passed from the opposite end.  From the centre of this tunnel, a small canal penetrates into the workings of an extensive coal mine.  This hill has for the third time been the scene of triumph to engineering skill, for it is now penetrated by the North Staffordshire Railway, which passes close by Kidsgrove church, through deep cuttings and a short tunnel, in its approach to the great tunnel, which is 1768 yards long, and nearly straight, passing for the greater part of the distance over the space between the canal tunnels, but at a much greater altitude.  At the south end of this noble tunnel, the trains pass through an open cutting to the Pottery vale.  Beyond the north entrance is Harecastle junction station, where the main line passes north to Macclesfield, and branches extend westward to Crewe and Sandbach.  This part of the railway was opened January 1st, 1849.


RANSCLIFF

     Marked * are at Kidsgrove

*Ash William, farm bailiff

*Bagnall Thomas, mine surveyor

*Beason Jesse, chapel clerk

Bowers Joseph, farmer

Charlesworth John, clerk

*Dale Daniel, builder

Gater John, clerk, Tunnel mouth

Grey John, farmer, Yeld hill

Haddock Edward, surgeon

Hastilow Richard, victualler, Plough

Heath Mrs. Jane, Kidsgrove

Kinnersly Thomas, Esq., coal and iron master, White hill; house Clough Hall

Lawton Harriet, Infant School

Moseley James, farmer and beerhouse

*Plant George, plumber, painter, etc

*Rawlins Rev. Charles (Wesleyan,) Wesley Cottage

Rowley John, Harecastle Tunnel

Taylor William, Harecastle Station

Tomkys Joseph, manager

*Unwin Ralph, clog maker

Walton Samuel, victualler, Crown and Thistle

*Worthington Thomas, National School

Shoemakers

*Dean Thomas

Edge Charles

Harding Charles

*Johnson John

Shopkeepers

Eardley John

*Higgins Benjamin

*Madowcroft Thomas

Pritchard Edwin

Tailors

Bamber William

*Dean Enoch

